
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/ SR.21 

 
 

Summary Records of Plenary Meetings 
21st plenary meeting 

 
Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  

the Sea, Volume I (Summary Records of Plenary Meetings of the First and Second Sessions, and 
of Meetings of the General Committee, Second Session) 

 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



21st meeting—28 June 1974 59

21st meeting
Friday, 28 June 1974, at 10.40 a.m.

President: Mr. H. S. AMERASINGHE (Sri Lanka).

General statements

1. The PRESIDENT read out a message from Richard M.
Nixon, President of the United States of America.

The meeting was suspended at 10.50 a.m. and resumed at
11 a.m.
2. Mr. FACIO (Costa Rica) said that his delegation was par-
ticipating in the Conference with the conviction that it was
essential to draft a convention that could be ratified by the
overwhelming majority of the international community so as to
avoid a situation in which the fishing fleets of the most devel-
oped countries and the multinational corporations would ap-
propriate the ichthyological and mineral resources of the sea-
bed and ocean floor that were the common heritage of
mankind.
3. The Latin American States had been precursors in the
development of international legal thinking on the regime of
the seas: as early as 1956, the Mexico resolution, adopted by
the Inter-American Council of Jurists, had established that the
breadth of three miles for the delimitation of the territorial sea
was insufficient and did not constitute a general rule of interna-
tional law. In 1970, a large group of Latin American countries
had adopted the Montevideo1 and Lima2 Declarations which
stressed the economic interest of the coastal States in disposing
of the natural resources of the sea and noted the geographical,
economic and social link between the sea, the land and man,
which gave the coastal States legitimate priority in the utiliza-
tion of the natural resources of the marine environment. In
1972, the Declaration of Santo Domingo3 had been signed,
which had made clear the need to establish two zones in ocean
space; one under the jurisdiction of coastal States, extending
not more than 200 miles, and another subject to the authority
of the international community.

i See A/AC. 138/34.
2SeeA/AC.I38/28.
3 Official Records of the General Assembly, Twenty-seventh Session,

Supplement No. 21 and corrigenda, annex I, sect. 2.

4. The concept of the patrimonial sea had come into being as
a consequence of the economic needs of Latin America, which
was a region with a birth-rate of over 3 per cent a year, com-
pared with 1.5 per cent in the industrialized countries. That
situation made it essential for the peoples of those countries to
be able to make maximum use of the natural resources existing
off their coasts in order to combat malnutrition and under-
development.
5. Objections had been raised to the 200-miles thesis, on the
ground that it would mean the closing of vast areas of the sea
to free navigation. That argument would be seen to be baseless
if it was taken into account that the Declaration of Santo
Domingo distinguished between a territorial sea 12 miles wide
in which the coastal State would exercise every aspect of full
sovereignty, and a patrimonial sea, or zone of exclusive eco-
nomic jurisdiction, extending to a maximum of a further 188
miles, in which the coastal State would exercise limited sover-
eignty over exploration, exploitation and conservation of its
marine resources both on the sea-bed and in the subsoil, the
exercise of that jurisdiction not, however, impeding free navi-
gation or the additional right to lay submarine cables and
pipelines. He noted with satisfaction that even the naval
Powers were now ready to accept a 12-mile limit provided that
it did not limit their freedom of navigation over and through
straits. The Conference would have to find a suitable formula
to meet that condition, because it was unrealistic to think that a
naval Power would agree that the movement of its fleets should
be subject to the goodwill of coastal States in international
straits less than 24 miles wide. The formula might perhaps take
the form of specific agreements regulating navigation and over-
flight in each of the international straits.
6. He stressed that the economic zone could not be the same
width everywhere, which was why mention had been made of a
maximum limit of 200 miles, to be reduced when the distance
separating two States was less than 400 miles, as was the case
with the coastal States of the Caribbean, where exact rules
would have to be drawn up to delimit the patrimonial sea and
even the territorial sea of neighbouring States.



60 Second Session—Plenary Meetings

7. Objections had also been raised to the concept of the patri-
monial sea on the ground that, when the coastal State did not
have the technical capacity to exploit the fishing potential,
there would be a waste of resources which, if properly ex-
ploited by foreigners, would alleviate the world shortage of
protein foods. Actually, that situation would not arise in prac-
tice, because the coastal State could always grant concessions
to foreign companies to engage in fishing, subject to the conser-
vation standards set by the coastal State and in return for
payment of suitable compensation. In any case, it could be
established in the future convention on the law of the sea that a
coastal State unable to exploit all the living resources of its
patrimonial sea would be obliged to grant concessions on rea-
sonable terms and conditions to foreign fishermen.

8. Moreover, as far as fisheries were concerned, it should be
recognized that a State in whose rivers anadromous species
spawned should have some jurisdiction over the regulation of
fishing for those species beyond the patrimonial sea; it was also
essential to agree that the fishing and conservation of highly
migratory species should be regulated by international or re-
gional authorities with the participation of all coastal States
and fishermen directly concerned.

9. Another problem the Conference would have to deal with
was that of the continental shelf, in respect of the breadth of
which the Geneva Conference had adopted the dual criterion of
depth and exploitability, thus, in an effort to place geographi-
cally different States on an equal footing before the law, failing
to take into account the fact that the legal breadth of the shelf
could not be greater than its geophysical breadth, which con-
sisted of the continental incline, slope and rise.

10. The fair solution for countries with a narrow shelf was to
be found in the concept of the patrimonial sea, because, since
that concept included the right to conserve, prospect for and
exploit the natural resources of the sea-bed and ocean floor and
of the superjacent waters contiguous to the territorial sea,
States without a wide shelf would still have exclusive jurisdic-
tion over the resources of the sea-bed up to a distance of 200
miles from their coasts despite the fact that they did not have a
true continental shelf. In accordance with that criterion, the
Declaration of Santo Domingo had included the following
provision:

"In that part of the continental shelf covered by the patri-
monial sea the legal regime provided for this area shall
apply. With respect to the part beyond the patrimonial sea,
the regime established for the continental shelf by interna-
tional law shall apply."

11. In addition, the geomorphological concept of the shelf
entailed recognition of the sovereignty of the coastal State over
the whole platform, including the outer edge of the continental
rise, which might be located more than 200 miles from the
coast. While the notion of adjacency might justify interpreting
the criterion of exploitability as signifying the limit of the plat-
form, such a criterion might lead to a restriction of the idea of
exploiting the sea-bed and ocean floor beyond national juris-
diction for the common benefit of mankind, since, as oceano-
graphic technology developed, it would be possible to exploit
the sea-bed at a greater depth and if it was accepted that the
continental shelf extended to the point where the depth of the
superjacent waters allowed its exploitation, the great Powers
might consider as their shelf not only that part that exhibited
those geomorphological features, but all the sea-bed off" their
coasts, which would diminish the extent of the international
sea-bed and ocean floor.

12. In those circumstances, it was essential for the Conference
on the Law of the Sea to establish the outer limits of the
continental shelf more precisely, taking into account its geo-
morphological characteristics, and not the variable criteria of
depth and exploitability. Accordingly, his delegation fully sup-
ported the formula set out in article 13 of the draft articles

submitted by the delegations of Colombia, Mexico and Vene-
zuela (A/9021 and Corr.l and 3, vol. Ill, sect. 9).

13. Another problem that had to be solved was the definition
of the way in which the competence of the international com-
munity over the sea-bed and ocean floor beyond the limits of
national jurisdiction was to be exercised. His delegation agreed
with those delegations that maintained that an authority must
be set up to administer the international zone of the seas to
ensure that its resources would be truly the common heritage of
mankind.

14. In conclusion he stated that the Conference on the Law of
the Sea must adopt rules to prevent the pollution of the marine
environment, which threatened the survival of the living re-
sources of the sea. Those rules must require only what was
absolutely essential to prevent or contain pollution, in order to
ensure that the developing countries would be able to comply
with them. Although his delegation agreed with the freedom of
scientific investigation of the seas, it believed that such investi-
gation must be carried out in such a way as to promote the
transfer of technology, which was the sole means of ensuring
that in the future the developing countries would be able to
assume directly the responsibility incumbent upon them in that
international task.

15. Mr. SARAIVA GUERREIRO (Brazil) said that after the
three years it had taken to prepare the Conference it was to be
expected that a clearer idea existed as to the extent to which the
interests at stake could be harmonized to facilitate the estab-
lishment of a universally acceptable body of norms on the use
of the sea. Like other countries which had extended their sover-
eignty up to a 200-mile limit, Brazil had had confirmation of its
conviction that that limit was adequate and necessary to pro-
tect the interests of coastal countries. Those interests included,
among other things, accelerated economic development, explo-
ration of the resources of the sea, conservation of the ecology
of the marine environment, and supervision of scientific re-
search to improve knowledge of that environment. The adop-
tion of that limit had not been considered prejudicial to the
legitimate interests of the international community, particu-
larly with regard to the need to keep international communica-
tions open and secure.

16. It was in the interest of the international community to
guarantee communications. What was involved was the right
of transit, rather than the freedom of navigation traditionally
associated with the high seas, since of necessity, that freedom
was subject to the limitations arising from the exercise of their
competences by the coastal States. However, such limitations
should not create tangible difficulties for international naviga-
tion, which States which had the 200-mile limit had sought to
guarantee. Some had continued to recognize, by applying old
concepts, freedom of navigation in the areas they had incorpo-
rated, although in fact a regime had been created which was
not identical with that of the high seas. Other States, such as
Brazil, applied to their territorial sea the traditional regime of
"innocent passage", but they interpreted it less subjectively
than would have been permissible under customary interna-
tional law, or under the 1958 Convention on the Territorial Sea
and the Contiguous Zone.4 Brazilian legislation and practice
had always guaranteed free transit in the territorial sea pro-
vided that activities unconnected with navigation were not
carried out. On that basis it would be possible to create a new
concept reflecting the regime of navigation in the area over
which national sovereignty had been extended. Recently the
Minister for Foreign Affairs of Brazil had said that, with re-
gard to maritime navigation and overflight in the territorial
sea, Brazil believed that through the very exercise of sover-
eignty, which was actually the sum total of jurisdictions, it was
possible to achieve an international solution which would both

4 United Nations, Treaty Series, vol. 516, p. 206.



21st meeting—28 June 1974 61

satisfy the interests of the coastal State and provide the indis-
pensable objective guarantees for navigation.
17. In theory there would be no less than three ways of
defining the regime of navigation in the sea area under national
sovereignty or jurisdiction between the belt contiguous to the
coast, in which the regime of innocent passage prevailed, and
the international zone, in which the traditional freedom of
navigation was maintained. Firstly, it could be said that in that
intermediate area a modified freedom of navigation and over-
flight was admitted, modified because restricted by the power
of the coastal State to exercise its sovereign right to control the
natural resources, scientific research and pollution. Secondly,
in that area of sovereignty a liberalized regime of innocent
passage applied, characterized by the non-imposition by the
coastal State of zones in which navigation was prohibited or of
regulations on the passage of warships, the coastal State re-
taining the right to authorize military exercises with weapons
and explosives. Thirdly, a simpler and realistic formula was to
declare that, in that intermediate area, free transit would be
permitted exclusively for the purposes of navigation, transport
and communications. That formula would be the counterpart
of one which would define the sovereignty or sovereign rights
of coastal States on the basis of the purpose for which the
territorial sea was used.
18. In March 1973 the delegation of Brazil had occasion at a
meeting of the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of the Sea-Bed
and the Ocean Floor beyond the Limits of National Jurisdic-
tion to express its satisfaction with concepts such as that of the
patrimonial sea, proclaimed by a large number of Latin Amer-
ican countries in the Santo Domingo Declaration, and that of
the exclusive economic zone, affirmed by the African States on
several occasions. The growing acceptance of those concepts
was a clear indication of the irreversible trend towards a new
legal order for the oceans, which had found simple, logical and
coherent expression in the adoption of a territorial sea of 200
miles. Nevertheless, more important than the definition of the
legal basis of the powers to be exercised was that of the nature
of such powers and the determination of rights which could not
be denied to third States, such as that of using the sea for
purposes of communication.
19. The concepts of the patrimonial sea and of an economic
zone could be of value only if they preserved their original
substance and meaning. Consequently, any attempt to confuse
the issue by using the old terms as a guise for putting forward
new proposals different in both kind and purpose must be op-
posed.
20. The delegation of Brazil considered that, in addition to
the question of the nature and scope of the rights of the coastal
State over the adjacent sea, a matter of paramount interest was
the question of land-locked States, whose legitimate interests,
especially in the case of the developing countries, should be
safeguarded. His delegation would seek a general formula
which reflected the policy of co-operation which Brazil had
always maintained with its neighbours and friends, Bolivia and
Paraguay, by providing them with facilities through its terri-
tory for a very wide access to the sea, so that they might use it
effectively.
21. Regarding the regime and machinery to be applied to the
sea-bed and ocean floor beyond the limits of national jurisdic-
tion, his delegation would do its utmost to ensure that a system
of exploitation was applied in that area, now recognized as the
common heritage of mankind, which guaranteed that all na-
tions would share equally in its benefits.
22. Mr. GALINDO POHL (El Salvador) recalled that 24
years ago El Salvador had espoused the thesis and doctrine of
the 200-mile limit, thus helping to pave the way for a new
regime of the seas. The innovations proposed by Latin Amer-
ican countries under the impact of the Truman Declaration
had acquired respectability with the support given in interna-
tional forums and in the Declarations of Montevideo, Lima

and Santo Domingo as well as the Declaration of Addis Ababa
(A/CONF.62/33). Africans, Asians and Latin Americans had
come together in a common effort linked to their prospects of
development.
23. The situation had changed radically between 1958 and
1974 and now the rights of the coastal State over an area
additional to that of innocent passage were part of the limited
stock of possible means of solving one of the most difficult
questions which confronted the Conference. However, two
crucial questions should be resolved, namely, the nature and
scope of such rights, and the breadth of the areas in which they
were to be recognized.
24. Among the interminable series of unilateral measures,
draft laws and conventions which had, in recent years, borne
witness to the inadequacy of the former law of the sea, and had
tended to create a new law, mention should be made of the
national debate on fishing areas which was taking place in the
United States, in particular the great significance of the bill on
a provisional enlarged fishing and administrative area, which
the House of Representatives of that country had been dis-
cussing since June 1973.

25. The road ahead was long and difficult because, in addi-
tion to problems of language, stereotypes, and even the aca-
demic training of the negotiators, there was the inherently
intricate panorama of political negotiation. What mattered was
to reach a political agreement which could then be translated
into legal terms. Concepts should be redefined according to
their basic tenets, ideas should be re-examined and there
should be more emphasis on content rather than on words, on
substance than on form, on political agreement as the first
stage, and legal formulation as the second.

26. A number of patterns had been examined outlining in
brief positions which were relatively similar and could be
briefly summarized, in the context of the rights of coastal
States, as the positions of territorialists, patrimonialists, prefer-
entialists, and supporters of the economic zone. Frequently the
range covered a variety of positions, which, while having cer-
tain features in common, also had pronounced individual
facets justifying the creation of several groups. The compe-
tences of the coastal State, expressed in terms such as sover-
eignty, jurisdiction, jurisdiction and control, authority and
control, and sovereign right led to arguments and differences of
opinion.

27. Another pitfall, arising from the legal training of negotia-
tors, was the various forms of interpreting sovereignty. Ac-
cording to Anglo-American legal thinking, sovereignty ap-
peared to be understood as the expression of absolute rights
and when the Truman Proclamation had been formulated, it
had been thought necessary to use the words "jurisdiction and
control" to express the fact that limited rights were meant.
However, with that formulation the State arrogated to itself
powers similar to those which would be expressed in the con-
text of sovereignty with limitations. For that reason many
interpreters, especially Latin American ones, had understood
that the Truman Proclamation asserted sovereignty over the
continental shelf. The Latin Americans who had proclaimed
sovereignty outright had claimed for themselves the same
rights and competences as President Truman had claimed by
using the term "jurisdiction".
28. Bodin, the father of the concept and doctrine of sover-
eignty, had set forth in his " Les Six Livres de la Republique"
the doctrine of absolute and unlimited sovereignty, but in other
volumes he had acknowledged the limitations of State power,
which had provided his successors with material for both the
thesis of unlimited power and absolutism, as well as for limita-
tion and relativity.

29. After having for many years used the term "jurisdiction
and control" taken from the Truman Proclamation, the Inter-
national Law Commission had decided to use the term "sover-



62 Second Session—Plenary Meetings

eign rights" to designate the rights of the coastal State over its
continental shelf.

30. In order to examine the positions of coastal States with
respect to the adjacent sea, it was necessary to distinguish
between sovereignty understood as the nature of State power,
and sovereignty as an amalgam of legal competences. In the
former case, the same power existed both when State compe-
tences were referred to in the aggregate by the term "sover-
eignty", and when there was an assignment of jurisdiction, or
jurisdiction and control, or authority and control, or sovereign
rights for specific purposes. In the latter case however, sover-
eignty did not express the nature of the power concerned, but
existed as an amalgam of State competences outside the frame-
work of their aims and purposes. Reduced to its basic elements,
the over-all reference to competence was equivalent to an
enumeration of specific competences, and, consequently, no
grounds of principle existed to prevent sovereignty from being
characterized by aims and purposes.
31. As to the nature of power, it was not possible to distin-
guish between sovereignty, jurisdiction and sovereign rights;
with regard to the competences in question, their general treat-
ment should be viewed in the context of sovereignty and their
specific treatment in the context of the enumeration of compe-
tences.

32. Territorialists, patrimonialists and supporters of the eco-
nomic zone claimed powers associated with the following as-
pects: exploration, exploitation and protection of renewable
and non-renewable natural resources situated in the waters, on
the sea-bed and in the subsoil of a given zone of not more than
200 miles; regulation of exploration, exploitation and protec-
tion of such resources; protection of the marine environment
and of living species; regulation, subject to certain rather lib-
eral provisos, of scientific research; siting and use of airports,
islands and other artificial installations.

33. Nevertheless, El Salvador considered that such an enu-
meration was inadequate and should be supplemented by the
power associated with other economic uses of the sea.

34. One important point should be mentioned, namely that
territorialists and supporters of the economic zone claimed
competence with regard to the zone, including its resources,
and not only over the resources of the zone. El Salvador was
one of the countries which maintained that the reference to the
competences of the coastal State should fall within the scope of
sovereignty, and considered sovereignty to be limited, in es-
sence and by nature, and susceptible of limitation by agree-
ment. For that reason the Salvadorian Constitution recognized
State sovereignty tempered by honesty, justice and social pro-
priety.
35. The regime of free navigation was the major factor lim-
iting State power in the area adjacent to the other area which
traditionally had been subject to the regime of innocent pas-
sage, because in that area there were two types of interest:
economic interest and security interest.
36. Conservation of the sea as a means of communication
and transport was of paramount importance. In the seven-
teenth century freedom of navigation seemed to have been
associated with unlimited fishing rights, since at that time the
resources of the sea appeared to be inexhaustible; with modern
techniques of exploitation, however, the resources of the sea
were in fact exhaustible. Moreover, today, navigation had to
be regulated, since it could cause pollutio.n and destroy biolog-
ical resources.

37. As for the immediate consequences, there were no insol-
uble differences between the three positions so far considered,
provided negotiations were carried on with due respect for
national political rights and, in particular, for legislative re-
quirements. As to the preferentialists, everything would depend
on the competences and the modalities thereof which they were
prepared to recognize. Generally speaking, the preferentialists

believed that most of the competences should remain in the
purview of the international community.
38. So far the analysis had been limited to the immediate
consequences of the general reference to and specific enumera-
tion of competences, but the question arose as to what the
consequences of those two techniques would be in the future
or, in other words, what would happen with regard to the uses
and exploitation of the sea that might be discovered through
technology and how the norms agreed upon would be inter-
preted.
39. The analogy would not be a rule of interpretation appli-
cable to the enumerative technique, which, according to its
own philosophy, would have to be interpreted in a strict and
limited way.
40. Consequently, if that technique was used, much care
would be needed in enumerating the competences, because
those not mentioned because of the objectives or purposes
would remain outside national jurisdictions and in the purview
of the international community or, for practical purposes, in
the purview of other States. It was therefore important that
there should be a reference to the other economic uses of the
sea.
41. When interpreting the agreed rules, doubtful cases and
marginal cases would be settled in favour of the coastal State if
the general technique was used, and in favour of the interna-
tional community, in other words, of the great maritime
Powers, if the enumerative technique was used.

42. Because of those future consequences, his delegation con-
sidered that the general statement of competences under sover-
eignty would safeguard the aspirations and interests of the
States that had advocated the creation and recognition of the
new maritime zone between the zone subject to the regime of
innocent passage and the high seas. The two techniques could
coincide in certain circumstances, but they would diverge in-
creasingly in the future.
43. His delegation could not believe that the Conference on
the Law of the Sea could be successful unless an appropriate
solution was found to the demands of the land-locked States
and, in general, of States in a geographically disadvantaged
situation, particularly in the case of the developing countries.
There was therefore a need to define more clearly the character-
istics of States that could be considered to be in a geographi-
cally disadvantaged situation. That would require an examina-
tion not only of their physical, but also their political and
human geography.
44. The same was true of the archipelagic States. The Confer-
ence must recognize the inherent features of those States and
the maritime implications of their physico-political peculiari-
ties, although care would be needed in clearly defining those
terms so as to avoid the ambiguities that might arise from, for
example, the possession of very distant islands by continental
States.
45. Nor was it possible to forget the questions connected with
international straits, islands and frontal and lateral delimita-
tion, the international zone of the sea-bed and the settlement of
disputes.
46. The general system and specifications for the settlement
of disputes were part of the treaty being negotiated. The use of
the traditional modalities available under international law
would probably have to be supplemented with subtle new ele-
ments, particularly when the'question arose of defining shares
in the common whole constituted by the international zone of
the sea-bed.
47. His delegation was in favour of solutions by consensus as
a general guarantee of meaningful negotiations and as a means
of ensuring that the convention would command wide support
and become a law of the seas. But, if it was not possible to
reach a consensus, large majorities would be needed to provide
a way out with opportunities for consolidation.



21st meeting—28 June 1974 63

48. What was needed was to ensure that every possible effort
was made to enable the Conference on the Law of the Sea to
produce a convention that would command the support that
the 1958 Geneva Conventions lacked.
49. Mr. MOE (Barbados) said that his country was partici-
pating in the Conference on the Law of the Sea with the firm
expectation that all States would agree upon the essential
principles and rules for an equitable system of law to govern
the sea, at a time when there were signs of the same indiscrimi-
nate exploitation of the marine environment which had charac-
terized past centuries.

50. A nation such as Barbados, which had recently obtained
its independence and had not participated in the formulation of
the existing international law of the sea, could not be expected
to accept as just those rules and principles which reflected the
interests of the great maritime Powers and which, far from
solving present-day problems of the sea, served merely to
widen the gap between the developed and developing countries.

51. Thus, his delegation felt that it was fundamental that any
new legal order for the sea should be based on an economic
arrangement between the two groups of countries and, indeed,
it saw the Conference as a great opportunity to devise a legal
framework whereby the resources of the sea could be used as a
vehicle for co-operation and economic development, the trans-
fer of technology and the removal of economic imbalances.
52. Barbados, which had limited land resources, now looked
to its coastal waters for the food resources which it required to
supplement its economy. It was therefore vital that any law of
the sea should take into account the access of the small devel-
oping coastal countries to the living resources of the seas in the
region in which these were situated.

53. With respect to the specific questions to be considered by
the Conference, reference must be made first of all to the ques-
tion of the territorial sea. In that connexion, his delegation felt
that the principle upon which the breadth of the territorial sea
should be based was the need for an adequate boundary area of
sea and sea-bed for the political and social security of a State.
To that end, his delegation considered that a territorial sea with
a maximum breadth of 12 miles was in keeping with interna-
tional law and practice and it would support such a proposal,
subject to the condition that there should be an agreement for
the establishment of a zone of economic jurisdiction in an area
adjacent to the territorial sea.
54. It was a recognized fact that the coastal State had a spe-
cial interest in the conservation and preservation of the natural
resources of the sea contiguous to its territorial sea, and eco-
nomic necessity justified the principle that a coastal State could
unilaterally extend its jurisdiction and control over the natural
resources of the sea-bed and subsoil of the continental shelf in
such a zone. His delegation therefore maintained that it was
reasonable, and consistent with the development of interna-
tional law, that the coastal State should have the right to ex-
plore and exploit such resources up to a distance of 200 miles.
That concept of the patrimonial sea would provide some hope
for the economic advancement so badly needed by the devel-
oping countries.

55. With respect to the international zone of the sea-bed,
recognized as the common heritage of mankind by the United
Nations, his delegation supported the idea of a common regime
which, by preventing cut-throat competition for the riches of
the sea-bed and ocean and the consequent dissipation of those
resources, would ensure a sharing of its benefits. It was there-
fore necessary to establish an authority representative of all
nations of the world which would consist of a general assembly
open to all members, in which each member would have the
right to vote, and an executive body, whose membership would
reflect the principle of equitable geographical representation.
That authority would have the power to undertake, directly or
indirectly, and in any case under its effective control, all activi-

ties of exploration and exploitation of the sea-bed in order to
ensure equitable distribution of its economic benefits, taking
into account the special interests and needs of developing coun-
tries.

56. Barbados also attached great importance to the protec-
tion of the sea-bed, for which strict rules must be laid down. It
was not only the pollution of the marine environment which
should be avoided, but also its economic and social conse-
quences, from which there could be no hope of escape. Marine
pollution respected no boundaries and thus national measures
must be complemented by international action, provided that it
did not impede the industrial development of the developing
countries.
57. Mr. CAMARA (Guinea) said that the work of the Con-
ference was being followed closely by the entire world since it
not only would lead to the establishment of a legal order for the
sea but also was being carried out in the context of the crisis
which was affecting relations between the highly developed
countries on the one hand and the majority of the peoples of
Asia, Africa, Latin America and the Caribbean on the other.
The Republic of Guinea, whose natural wealth included a sea
filled with ichthyological resources and which anticipated the
exploitation of possible hydrocarbon resources at a distance of
less than 100 miles from its coast, firmly believed that the way
to ensure that the exploitation of land and marine resources
benefited all peoples was to guarantee the security, indepen-
dence and sovereignty of countries. Ever since it had attained
its independence from French colonialism, Guinea had been,
and it continued to be, the permanent target of international
imperialism; in addition, it had been the victim of aggression
by the Portuguese empire. Thus Guinea's primordial concern
was to ensure its security and to develop, at the same time, the
material foundation of its independence.
58. The right of any people to its livelihood and development
presupposed the occupation of the land and air space which
defined the nation. For example, the right of the United States
of America, China, the Soviet Union, the United Kingdom or
France to control their air space had never been questioned.
But space was multidimensional, reflecting the interests of a
community. Consequently, if it was considered that air space
formed an integral part of the national heritage, it should be
acknowledged that the same legal notion applied with respect
to the sovereignty of coastal States over a part of their coasts.

59. In 1964, Guinea had delimited its territorial zone, which
had a direct bearing on its security and its economic develop-
ment. That measure, although it had been made known, had
not given rise to any objections. Furthermore, it had been
made known that in that same zone there had been important
explorations of resources the results of which had opened up
great possibilities for Guinea's economic and social develop-
ment. Nevertheless, those discoveries had been sufficient for a
movement to be organized and intensified, directed by certain
Powers, aimed at reducing the ocean space of States. In the
light of that subtle trend towards the undermining of the secu-
rity and the economic bases of States, in particular of the
developing countries, Guinea unequivocally affirmed that it
would not reduce, under any pressure or for any reason, the
minimum limit of 130 miles which it had fixed for its territorial
sea. However, aware of the need for communication and inter-
national trade, Guinea would allow all nations, as well as indi-
viduals and bodies corporate, complete freedom of navigation.
It should be noted that Guinea had never impeded that
freedom of navigation, which some maritime Powers had sys-
tematically abused by exploiting the ichthyological resources
in Guinea's territorial waters and by endangering its fisheries.

60. With respect to the regime for the exploitation of the
resources in Guinea's territorial waters, he stressed that his
country, while it would not mortgage the future of its people by
permitting such exploitation under any condition whatever,
was aware of the economic interdependence of all nations. For



64 Second Session—Plenary Meetings

that reason, it sought true international co-operation which
would lead to the replacement of exploitation by co-operation.
61. Capitalism had given rise to a polarization characterized
by technical and financial progress in North America and Eu-
rope on the one hand, and by under-development and scientific
and technological backwardness, in short, by poverty and
misery, in Asia, Africa, Latin America and the Caribbean on
the other. Thus the world was divided not only between capi-
talist regimes and socialist regimes, but, even more, between
industrialized and non-industrialized countries, between rich
and poor, between those who, thanks to their technical ad-
vancement, were exploiting the natural wealth to their satisfac-
tion and those, including two thirds of mankind, who sold their
raw materials under increasingly unjust conditions. Under
those circumstances, one might wonder how the United Na-
tions could succeed in its ideal of universality, justice, security,
peaceful coexistence, development and well-being for all peo-
ples if a system of relationships was maintained in which the
rich were becoming increasingly rich and the poor increasingly
poor. In view of the claim by some Powers that they should
assume certain privileges in order, as they said, to ensure world
security, Guinea maintained that the present situation must not
be allowed to continue. It would be a tragic farce if, instead of
reacting vigorously to that situation, the peoples, in their desire
to bring about a change, were to plead for the generosity of

those who were profiting from it. Justice, both economic and
social, was not granted: it must be won.

62. His delegation, speaking for a people which had been
identified with the cause of all peoples fighting for freedom, the
inalienable right of peoples, was mindful that while there were
independent nations which were still suffering from economic
exploitation, there were other nations which were at that very
time suffering from odious colonial domination. The liberation
movements operating in Angola, Mozambique, Zimbabwe,
Namibia, South Africa and the Middle East were fighting for
the restitution of their fatherlands and were the authentic rep-
resentatives of their respective peoples. They deserved to oc-
cupy a place at the Conference, so that any decisions which
might be adopted on behalf of States and peoples would have
greater guarantees.

63. Within the framework of the Conference in which the
foundation of a new regime of ocean space was to be estab-
lished, Guinea was opposed to, and would always oppose, the
iniquitous and unjust system represented by exploitation and
economic imperialism, and would seek to replace it by dy-
namic, egalitarian and genuine co-operation. If that was the
meaning of consensus, Guinea was in favour of consensus.

The meeting rose at 1.05 p.m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


